
- over - 

AGENDA FOR 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 

April 9, 2019 
 

CALENDAR 
 

Apr  9 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Apr  9 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Apr 16 7:00 a.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Apr 23 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

May 14 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

May 28 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

 

******************* 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 

B. THE ELKHART PROMISE 
 

C. INVITATION TO SPEAK PROTOCOL 

 
D. SUPERINTENDENT’S STUDENT ADVISORY COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVES 

Memorial High School 

Central High School 
 

E. MINUTES 

March 12, 2019 – Public Work Session 
March 26, 2019 – Public Work Session 
March 26, 2019 – Regular Board Meeting 

 
F. TREASURER'S REPORT 

 

 Consideration of Claims 
 

 Gift Acceptance - The administration recommends Board acceptance with 

appreciation of recent donations made to Elkhart Community Schools. 
 

 1028 Hearing for Engineering, Technology and Innovation Building Project 

 
 Resolution Confirming Execution of Amendment to Lease - The Business 

office recommends Board adoption of a resolution confirming the execution 

of the Amendment to Lease. 
 

 Resolution Approving Additional Appropriation - The Business office 

recommends Board adoption of an additional appropriation for the proposed 
2019 Engineering, Technology and Innovation Building Project. 

REVISED 
April 8, 2019 



BOARD AGENDA April 9, 2019 
 
 

2 
   

 Fundraisers - The Business Office recommends Board approval of proposed 
school fundraisers in accordance with Board Policy. 
 

 Bus Purchase – The Business Offices requests authorization to purchases 
busses through the State Bid List purchasing program. 
 

G. OLD BUSINESS 
 

 Board Policy 3120.07ACS – Employment of Consultants – The 
administration presents proposed revisions to Board Policy 3120.07ACS – 
Employment of Consultants, as presented at the March 26th regular 

meeting. 
 

H. NEW BUSINESS 
 

 Board Policy 8340 – Letters of Reference or Employment Reference – The 
administration presents proposed revisions to Board Policy 8340 – Letters 
of Reference or Employment Reference, for initial consideration. 
 

 Administrative Regulation GCR – Providing a Reference – The 
administration presents proposed new Administrative Regulation GCR – 
Providing a Reference, for initial consideration. 

 
 Elkhart Public Library Appointment 

 

 Elementary ELA Adoption 

 Middle School Math Adoption 

 Grants – The administration seeks Board approval for the submission of 
grants as recommended by the administration. 
 

 Overnight Trip Request - The administration seeks Board approval of 
overnight trip requests. 
 

I. PERSONNEL 
 

 Conference Leaves - It is recommended the Board grant conference leave 
requests in accordance with Board Policy to staff members as recommended 

by the administration. 
 

 Certified and Classified Staff - See the report and recommendations of the 
administration. 
 

J. INFORMATION AND PROPOSALS 
 

 From Audience 
 

 From Superintendent and Staff  
         Referendum Information – Levy computation 
 

 From Board 
 

K. ADJOURNMENT 
 



MINUTES OF THE 
PUBLIC WORK SESSION 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 

March 12, 2019 
 

J.C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart – at 

5:30 p.m. 
 

Place/Time 

Board Members Douglas K. Weaver Babette S. Boling 

Present: Kellie L. Mullins Susan C. Daiber 

 Carolyn R. Morris Roscoe L. Enfield, Jr. 

   

Absent:  Rodney J. Dale 

   

ECS Personnel  Philip Lederach Steven Thalheimer 

Present: Wes Molyneaux Doug Thorne 
  Cheryl Waggoner 
   
   

 

Roll Call 

The Board heard the following reports:  Philip Lederach, director of 
secondary instruction, provided an overview of the search and selection of a 

middle school math resource provider.  A recommendation to the Board for 
approval is planned for an April meeting.  Wes Molyneaux, director of 
technology integration, presented information regarding timeline for district-

wide 1:1, training and e-learning days. 
 

Topics 
Discussed 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 6:50 p.m. 

 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, President 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Kellie L. Mullins, Vice President 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Carolyn R. Morris, Secretary 

 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Babette S. Boling, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Susan C. Daiber, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Rodney J. Dale, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Roscoe L. Enfield, Jr., Member 

 

 

 
Signatures 

 



MINUTES OF THE 
PUBLIC WORK SESSION 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 

March 26, 2019 
 

J.C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart – at 

5:30 p.m. 
 

Place/Time 

Board Members Douglas K. Weaver Babette S. Boling 

Present: Kellie L. Mullins Susan C. Daiber 

 Carolyn R. Morris Rodney J. Dale 

  Roscoe L. Enfield, Jr. 

   

ECS Personnel  Cary Anderson Tessa Sutton 

Present: Brian Buckley Steven Thalheimer 
 Tony England Doug Thorne 
 Jacquie Rost Cheryl Waggoner 
   

 

Roll Call 

The Board heard the following reports:  Tessa Sutton, supervisor of 
connective leadership and inclusion, presented information on the upcoming 
Thought Leadership Conference and results of the recent core values survey 

and world care events.  Brian Buckley, athletic director, Central High School, 
and Jacquie Rost, athletic director, Memorial High School, presented plans 
for hiring head coaches at the conclusion of each high school’s sport seasons 

and proposed financials. 
 

Topics 
Discussed 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 6:45 p.m. 

 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, President 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Kellie L. Mullins, Vice President 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Carolyn R. Morris, Secretary 

 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Babette S. Boling, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Susan C. Daiber, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Rodney J. Dale, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Roscoe L. Enfield, Jr., Member 

 

 
 

Signatures 

 



MINUTES 
OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 
March 26, 2019 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart – at 

7:00 p.m. 
 

Place/Time 

Board Members Douglas K. Weaver Babette S. Boling 
Present: Kellie L. Mullins Susan C. Daiber 

 Carolyn R. Morris Rodney J. Dale 
  Roscoe L. Enfield, Jr. 
   

   
 

Roll Call 

President Doug Weaver called the regular meeting of the Board of School 
Trustees to order. 

 

Call to 
Order 

Superintendent, Dr. Steven Thalheimer, recited the Elkhart Promise. The Elkhart 
Promise 

Mr. Weaver discussed the invitation to speak protocol. 

 

 

Superintendent’s Student Advisory Council (SSAC) representatives from 
both high schools introduced themselves: Tyler Lehner, a junior from 

Memorial High School (MHS) and Jai’Lin Parker, a freshman from Central 
High School (CHS).  In addition to SSAC, Tyler Lehner is the quarterback 
of the football team, a member of the unified track team, and one of the 

two editors-in-chief of Genesis.  Mr. Lehner reported earlier in the day 
Memorial hosted an omelet bar appreciation breakfast for the 
paraprofessionals since Paraprofessional Day falls during Spring break.  

In sports, the baseball team won their first game yesterday, the boys 
and girls track team is competing against Central this evening, girls 
tennis has started and girls softball begins on the 28th.  Jai’Lin Parker 

reported: Ashley Moreno received a National Honor Society scholarship 
as a semi-finalist; Lori Holt has been named Central’s Teacher of the 
Year; pre-competition concerts were presented by the choir, band, and 

orchestra; the current student art show downtown; the upcoming 
improve show; and the start of Spring sports. 
 

SSAC 
Representatives 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following minutes: 
March 12, 2019 – Regular Board Meeting 
March 19, 2019 – Public Work Session 

 

Approval of 
Minutes 

By unanimous action, the Board approved payment of claims totaling 
$5,568,058.62 as shown on the March 26, 2019, claims listing.  

(Codified File 1819-126) 
 

Payment of 
Claims 



2 
 

By unanimous action, the Board accepted with appreciation the following 
donations made to Elkhart Community Schools (ECS):  7,000 backpack 

reflectors for elementary students from Monteith Tire (donor valued at 
approx. $11,500); and $500 from The Sarah Crane Foundation for the 
girls/boys track team at Memorial.  The Board noted the safety benefit 

to students from wearing the backpack reflectors and suggested they be 
included in future backpack distributions. 
 

Gift Acceptance 

The Board received a financial report from Kevin Scott, chief financial 
officer, for the period January 1, 2019 – February 28, 2019, and found it 
to be in order. 

 

Financial Report 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the cash tuition rates for the 
2019-2020 school year.  Mr. Scott stated the rate for students in grades 

K-12 will be $7,400.  (Codified File 1819-127) 
 

Cash Tuition 
Rates 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed school fundraisers 

in accordance with Board policy.  The funds raised through the listed 
activities are deposited into each school’s extra-curricular fund. (Codified 
File 1819-128) 

 

Fundraisers 

 

By unanimous action, the Board approved an extra-curricular purchase 

request of ILearn t-shirts from West Side Middle School in the amount of 
$2,948. 
 

Extra-Curricular 

Purchase Request 
 

Mr. Scott provided the current insurance report stating claims are down 
over a million dollars from the same time last year. 

Monthly 
Insurance 
Report 

 
By unanimous action, the Board approved amended revisions to Board 
Policy 3141ACS – Suspension of Employees, as initially presented at the 

Board’s March 12th regular meeting. 
 

Board Policy 
3141ACS 

 

The Board reviewed proposed new Administrative Regulation GCS – 

Procedure for Suspension, as initially presented at the Board’s March 12th 
regular meeting. 
 

Administrative 

Regulation GCS 
 

The Board reviewed proposed revisions to Administrative Regulation 
IGBB – Procedures for Indentifying and Service High Ability Students, as 
initially presented at the Board’s March 12th regular meeting. 

 

Administrative 
Regulation 
IGBB 

 
By unanimous action, the Board approved revisions to Board Policy 6460 
– Conflicts of Interest and Vendor Relations, as initially presented at the 

Board’s March 12th regular meeting. 
 

Board Policy 
6460 

 

The Board was presented proposed revisions to Board Policy 3120.07ACS 

– Employment of Consultants, for initial consideration. 

Board Policy 

3120.07ACS  
 

By unanimous action, the Board adopted a resolution establishing the 

Superintendent’s goals for 2019.  (Codified File 1819-129) 

Resolution 

 



3 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the revised Board of School 
Trustees’ Meeting calendar for 2019.  (Codified File 1819-130) 

 

BST Calendar 
2019 

 
By unanimous action, the Board approved the submission of a grant to 
the Indiana Department of Workforce Development for an Integrated 

English Literacy and Civics Education Grant from adult education in the 
amount of $100,000.  (Codified File 1819-131) 
 

Grant 
Submission 

 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following overnight trip 
requests: 14 Central track team to travel to Bloomington, IN on March 
22-23, for the State indoor track meet; and Pinewood sixth graders to 

travel to Camp Friedenswald in Cassopolis, MI on April 29-30 for an 
outdoor adventure experience.  Board members noted what a great 
experience the trip to Camp Fridenswald is and their hope for the 

program to continue each year. 
 

Overnight Trip 
Requests 

By unanimous action, the Board approved conference leave requests in 

accordance with Board policy for staff members as recommended by the 
administration on the March 26, 2019 listings.  (Codified File 1819-132) 
 

Conference 

Leave Requests 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following personnel 
recommendations of the administration: 

 

Personnel 
Report 

An agreement regarding resignation and severance benefits for 
a certified staff member. (Codified Files 1819-133) 

 

Consent 
Agreement 

 

Employment of certified staff member, Amy Saros, speech 
pathologist at Osolo, effective 3/18/19 for the 2018-2019 school 

year. 
 

Certified 
Employment 

Maternity leave for certified staff member, Nicole Martinez, ESL at 

Cleveland, beginning 4/9/19 and ending 5/10/19. 
 

Certified Leave 

Resignation of the following four (4) certified staff members 

effective on the dates indicated: 
Sarah Bainbridge - special education at Memorial, 3/29/19 
Tracy Beatty - special education at Beardsley, 3/29/19 

Heather Duncan - grade 2 at Riverview, 3/21/19 
Benjamin Kase - math at Memorial, 6/6/19 
 

Certified 

Resignations 

Resignation of the following two (2) classified employees effective 
on the dates indicated: 

Patricia Grace - paraprofessional at Eastwood, 2/22/19 

Gayla Konanz - social worker at Woodland, 3/29/19 
 

Classified 
Resignations 
 

  



4 
 

Employment of the following eleven (11) classified employees who 
have successfully completed their probationary period on dates 

indicated: 
Charlena Armstrong - bus helper at Transportation, 3/22/19 
Kristie Burk - bus driver at Transportation, 3/19/19 

Jessica Donovan - bus helper at Transportation, 3/25/19 
Deanna Eick - paraprofessional at Hawthorne, 3/13/19 
Amber Harlston - food service at Central, 3/15/19 

Esther Hargrove - paraprofessional at Beck, 3/15/19 
Kevin Hunter - bus driver at Transportation, 3/25/19 
Queen Idewu - food service at Cleveland, 3/19/19 

Erin Pickart - speech language pathologist assistant at 
PACE, 3/22/19 

Jasmine Sandoval - bus helper at Transportation, 3/21/19 

Pauletta Turpin - food service at Hawthorne, 3/22/19 
 

Classified 
Employment 

 

Revision to leave for classified employee Ellen Springer, food 
service at North Side, beginning 2/8/19 and ending 5/8/19 

 

Revised 
Classified 
Leave 

 
Termination of classified employee, Jermaine Rogers, technical 
assistant at Beardsley, in accordance with Board Policy 3139.01S 

effective 3/26/19. 
 

Classified 
Termination 

 

An audience member spoke in support of the referendum, noting the 

legislators causing school districts to become self-funded, and a need to 
leave a legacy to the students. 
 

From the 

Audience 
 

An audience member spoke in support of the referendum, the need to 
educate the public on school funding, to pay teachers a fair wage, 

protect property values, and to provide educational pathways. 
 

From the 
Audience 

 

Superintendent Thalheimer reported he traveled to Indianapolis today 

with members of the Elkhart Teachers Association to meet with 
legislators regarding budget, safety, and property tax issues.  He also 
noted he has been speaking with individuals regarding the referendum, 

helping them understand funding and making it clear why the district 
needs the funds generated from the referendum. 
 

From the 

Superintendent 
 

Board member, Rocky Enfield, stated the Board does not have the 
power to raise taxes, they are asking the community to value education, 
value teachers, value students and the future of Elkhart.  To stand with 

education. 
 

From the Board 
 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 7:50 p.m. 

 

Adjournment 

  



5 
 

APPROVED: 
 

  ____________________________________ 
  Douglas K. Weaver, President 
 

 
  ____________________________________ 
  Kellie L. Mullins, Vice President 

 
 
  ____________________________________ 

  Carolyn R. Morris, Secretary 
 
 

____________________________________ 
  Babette S. Boling, Member 
 

 
____________________________________ 

  Susan C. Daiber, Member 

 
 

____________________________________ 
  Rodney J. Dale, Member 
 

 
____________________________________ 

  Roscoe L. Enfield, Jr., Member 

Signatures 

 





RESOLUTION OF BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES CONFIRMING EXECUTION 

OF THE AMENDMENT TO LEASE AND MATTERS RELATED THERETO 

WHEREAS, this Board of School Trustees (the “Board”) of the Elkhart Community 
Schools, Elkhart County, Indiana (the “School Corporation”), has previously examined and 
approved a form of a Fourth Amendment to Lease (the “Fourth Amendment”) by and between 
the Elkhart Community School Building Corporation, an Indiana nonprofit corporation existing 
pursuant to Indiana Nonprofit Corporation Act of 1991, as amended, as lessor (the “Building 
Corporation”), and the School Corporation, as lessee, which amends a Lease, dated as of 
February 24, 1998 (the “Original Lease”), as amended and supplemented by an Addendum to 
Lease, dated as of May 5, 1998 (the “Addendum to Lease”), a First Amendment to Lease, dated 
as of October 1, 2003 (the “First Amendment to Lease”), a Second Amendment to Lease, dated 
as of April 23, 2013 (the “Second Amendment to Lease”), an Addendum to Second Amendment 
to Lease, dated as of May 1, 2013 (the “Addendum to Second Amendment to Lease”), a Third 
Amendment to Lease, dated as of April 10, 2018 (the “Third Amendment to Lease”), and an 
Addendum to Third Amendment to Lease, dated as of December 1, 2018 (the “Addendum to 
Third Amendment to Lease”)(the Original Lease, as amended by the Addendum to Lease, the 
First Amendment to Lease, the Second Amendment to Lease, the Addendum to Second 
Amendment to Lease, the Third Amendment to Lease and the Addendum to Third Amendment 
to Lease, collectively, the “Lease”), for the reimbursement for improvements to all or any 
portion of the Premises (as defined in the Lease) paid by the School Corporation since the 
Premises have been owned by the Building Corporation and the extension of the ownership of 
the Premises by the Building Corporation beyond the current term in order to provide the School 
Corporation with the funds sufficient to pay all or a portion of the costs of the 2019 Engineering, 
Technology and Innovation Building Project, as defined and described in the resolution adopted 
by the Board on February 26, 2019, and all costs related thereto; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Indiana Code § 20-47-3-10, as amended, prior to the execution 
of a lease between a lessor corporation and a school corporation, a public hearing must be held 
giving all interested persons the right to be heard upon the necessity for the execution of such 
lease and whether the rental provided for therein be paid to the lessor corporation is a fair and 
reasonable rental for the proposed building; and  

WHEREAS, notice of a public hearing (1) to explain the potential value of the 2019 
Engineering, Technology and Innovation Building Project to the School Corporation and the 
community, and (2) upon the form of the proposed Fourth Amendment, was given by publication 
as required by law; and 

WHEREAS, on the date hereof, a public hearing was conducted in accordance with 
Indiana Code § 20-47-3-9, as amended, (1) to explain the potential value of the 2019 
Engineering, Technology and Innovation Building Project to the School Corporation and the 
community, and (2) regarding whether the execution of the Fourth Amendment is necessary and 
whether the rentals in the Fourth Amendment are fair and reasonable for the proposed facilities; 
and 



2 
 

WHEREAS, interested people have been given the opportunity to present testimony and 
ask questions concerning each of the 2019 Engineering, Technology and Innovation Building 
Project and the Fourth Amendment; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has considered the testimony and other evidence presented at the 
public hearing; and 

WHEREAS, the Board, being duly advised, finds that it is in the best interests of the 
School Corporation and its citizens for the purpose of financing all or any portion of the 2019 
Engineering, Technology and Innovation Building Project to extend the term of the ownership of 
all or any portion of the Premises by the Building Corporation, and enter into the Fourth 
Amendment with the Building Corporation, as lessor, for all of the Premises, in order to better 
serve the residents of the School Corporation, by allowing the Building Corporation to issue first 
mortgage bonds in one or more series to fund all or any portion of the 2019 Engineering, 
Technology and Innovation Building Project in an original aggregate principal amount not to 
exceed Five Million One Hundred Seventy Thousand Dollars ($5,170,000) (the “2019A 
Bonds”).  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
OF THE ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS, ELKHART COUNTY, INDIANA, that: 

Section 1.  Providing for the 2019 Engineering, Technology and Innovation Building 
Project is in the public interest, and it is a proper public purpose for which this Board agrees to 
cooperate with the Building Corporation and to assist it in fulfilling the requirements of all the 
agencies of the federal, state and local governments. 

Section 2.  The drawings, plans and specifications and estimates for all of the cost of the 
2019 Engineering, Technology and Innovation Building Project, including but not limited to, all 
costs of acquisition and construction associated with the 2019 Engineering, Technology and 
Innovation Building Project, provide for necessary facilities for the School Corporation and the 
same are hereby approved. 

Section 3.  The proposed Fourth Amendment, as described in the notice of public 
hearing, be, and hereby is, confirmed in accordance with Indiana Code 20-47-3-10(b), and 
provides for a fair and reasonable rental of all or a portion of the Premises with an increased term 
not to exceed twenty (20) years from the date the first series of the 2019A Bonds are issued, with 
an increased annual lease rental not to exceed One Million Two Hundred Fifty-One Thousand 
Dollars ($1,251,000), and further, the execution of the Fourth Amendment is necessary and wise. 

Section 4.  The President of the Board is authorized and directed to initial and date a copy 
of the proposed Fourth Amendment and to place the same in the record book immediately 
following the minutes of this meeting, and further, the Fourth Amendment is hereby made a part 
of this Resolution as fully as if the same were set forth herein. 

Section 5.  Any officer of the Board is authorized and directed to execute the Fourth 
Amendment, in the name and on behalf of the School Corporation, and the Secretary of the 
Board, or any other officer of the Board, is hereby authorized and directed to attest such 
execution of the Fourth Amendment. 



3 
 

Section 6.  Each of the Secretary of the Board, or any other officer of the School 
Corporation, the Superintendent of the School Corporation (the “Superintendent”) and the Chief 
Financial Officer of the School Corporation (the “Chief Financial Officer”), be, and hereby is, 
authorized and directed, on behalf of the School Corporation to publish notice of the execution of 
the Fourth Amendment in accordance with Indiana Code 20-47-3-11(a). 

Section 7.  An annual tax levy shall be authorized in each year during the term of the 
Fourth Amendment to provide the necessary funds with which to pay the rent under the Fourth 
Amendment. 

Section 8.  The issuance, sale and delivery by the Building Corporation of the 2019A 
Bonds pursuant to the applicable laws of the State of Indiana, with a maximum term not to 
exceed twenty (20) years, and in an aggregate original principal amount not to exceed 
$5,170,000, is hereby approved. 

Section 9.  Upon the repayment or prepayment by the School Corporation of all of the 
outstanding principal amount of the Bonds (as defined in the Lease), the School Corporation, as 
lessee, will accept from the Building Corporation title to the Premises, including any addition 
thereto, free and clear of any and all liens and encumbrances thereon except as otherwise 
permitted by the Fourth Amendment. 

Section 10.  The Building Corporation may issue, sell and deliver such 2019A Bonds, 
pursuant to the applicable laws of the State of Indiana, may encumber any property acquired by 
it for the purpose of financing such facilities, and may enter into contracts for the sale of the 
2019A Bonds and the 2019 Engineering, Technology and Innovation Building Project. 

Section 11.  The Board hereby approves the extension of the ownership of the Premises 
by the Building Corporation upon payment by the Building Corporation to the School 
Corporation of the proceeds of the 2019A Bonds received by the Building Corporation. 

Section 12.   Any member of the Board, officer of the School Corporation or the 
Superintendent or Chief Financial Officer be, and hereby is, authorized and directed to take any 
action and execute any documents, agreements and certificates as such member or officer deems 
necessary and desirable to effectuate the foregoing resolutions, and any such actions, documents, 
agreements and certificates heretofore taken or executed, including, but not limited to, 
publication of the notices of the public hearing on the Fourth Amendment, be, and hereby are, 
ratified and approved.  In addition, the Superintendent and the Chief Financial Officer, each as 
an Authorized Representative of the Building Corporation, may approve change orders prior to 
seeking formal approval of such change orders from the Board; provided, however, such change 
orders shall be subsequently presented to the Board for its approval. 



4 
 

This Resolution hereby is ADOPTED by the Board of School Trustees of the Elkhart 
Community Schools, Elkhart County, Indiana, this 9th day of April, 2019. 

 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES OF THE ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS, 

ELKHART COUNTY, INDIANA 

AYE  NAY 
   

     
   
     
   
     
   
     
   
     
   
     
   
     
 
ATTEST: 
 
  
Secretary of the Board of School Trustees  

  

 
 

DMS JJQ 14093747v1 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FOURTH AMENDMENT TO LEASE 
 

between 
 

ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOL BUILDING CORPORATION 
(as assignee of the Elkhart Community Schools Building Corporation), 

Lessor 
 

and 
 

ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS, 
ELKHART COUNTY, INDIANA, 

Lessee 
 

Dated as of April 9, 2019 

Cross Reference: Cross Reference: This instrument supplements and amends the Lease, dated as 
of February 24, 1998, recorded in the office of the recorder of Elkhart County, Indiana, October 
21, 2003, as Instrument No. 2003-44987, as supplemented and amended by the Addendum to 
Lease, dated as of May 5, 1998, recorded in the office of the recorder of Elkhart County, Indiana, 
on October 21, 2003, as Instrument No. 2003-44988, as further supplemented and amended by 
the First Amendment to Lease, dated as of October 1, 2003, recorded in the office of the recorder 
of Elkhart County, Indiana, on October 21, 2003, as Instrument No. 2003-44990, as further 
supplemented and amended by the Second Amendment to Lease, dated as of April 23, 2013, 
recorded in the office of the recorder of Elkhart County, Indiana, on June 27, 2013, as Instrument 
No. 2013-15268, and as further supplemented and amended by the Addendum to Second 
Amendment Lease, dated as of May 1, 2013, recorded in the office of the recorder of Elkhart 
County, Indiana, on June 27, 2013, as Instrument No. 2013-15269, as further supplemented and 
amended by the Third Amendment to Lease, dated as of April 10, 2018, recorded in the office of 
the recorder of Elkhart County, Indiana, on December 28, 2018, as Instrument No. 2018-26484, 
and as further supplemented and amended by the Addendum to Third Amendment Lease, dated 
as of December 1, 2018, recorded in the office of the recorder of Elkhart County, Indiana, on 
December 28, 2018, as Instrument No. 2018-26485.   



 

 

FOURTH AMENDMENT TO LEASE  

THIS FOURTH AMENDMENT TO LEASE is entered into as of this 9th day of April, 
2019 (the “Fourth Amendment”), between ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOL BUILDING 
CORPORATION (as assignee of the Elkhart Community Schools Building Corporation), an 
Indiana nonprofit corporation (the “Lessor”), and ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS, 
ELKHART COUNTY, INDIANA, a school corporation existing under the laws of the State of 
Indiana, as lessee (the “Lessee”). 

1. The Lessor (as assignee of the Elkhart Community Schools Building Corporation) 
and the Lessee entered into a Lease, dated as of February 24,1998 (the “Original Lease”), as 
amended and supplemented by an Addendum to Lease, dated as of May 5, 1998 (the “Addendum 
to Lease”), an Amendment to Lease, dated as of October 1, 2003 (the “First Amendment to 
Lease”), a Second Amendment to Lease, dated as of April 23, 2013 (the “Second Amendment to 
Lease”), an Addendum to Second Amendment Lease, dated as of May 1, 2013 (the “Addendum 
to Second Amendment to Lease”), a Third Amendment to Lease, dated as of April 10, 2018 (the 
“Third Amendment to Lease”), and an Addendum to Third Amendment to Lease, dated as of 
December 1, 2018 (the “Addendum to Third Amendment to Lease”) (the Original Lease, as 
amended by the Addendum to Lease, the Amendment to Lease, the Second Amendment to 
Lease, the Addendum to Second Amendment Lease, the Third Amendment to Lease and the 
Addendum to Third Amendment to Lease, collectively, the “Lease”); and 

2. The Lessor and the Lessee wish to further amend the Lease by modifying the term 
of the Lease and increasing the rent payable under the Lease to provide the Lessor with the 
ability to issue one or more series of additional first mortgage bonds (collectively, the “2019A 
Bonds”) for the reimbursement for improvements to all or any portion of the Premises (as 
defined in the Lease) paid by the Lessee since the Premises have been owned by the Lessor and 
as payment to the Lessee for the extension of the ownership of the Premises by the Lessor, all of 
which funds the Lessee will use for the purpose of financing the costs of constructing and 
equipping a new building to be operated by the Lessee for certain engineering, technology and 
innovation programs and curriculum to be provided by the Lessee, other miscellaneous facility 
and/or equipping projects at facilities operated by the Lessee and any projects related to any of 
such facility improvement, renovation and equipping projects, all to be used in connection with 
the operation of the Lessee, all as described in the resolution adopted by the Board of School 
Trustees of the Lessee on February 26, 2019 (collectively, the “2019 Engineering, Technology 
and Innovation Building Project”). 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, the covenants and agreements 
hereinafter contained, and for other valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 
are hereby acknowledged, the Lessor and the Lessee agree as follows: 



 

2 

PART I 

PREMISES, TERM AND WARRANTY 

Section 1 of the Original Lease, as previously supplemented and amended, is hereby 
further amended by adding at the end thereof the following paragraph: 

 
 “Notwithstanding anything in the Lease to the contrary, with respect to the rental 

payments to be paid by the Lessee under the Fourth Amendment, the term of for such payments 
shall end on the date which is twenty (20) calendar years after the issuance of the first series of 
2019A Bonds, or such earlier date as set forth in an addendum to the Fourth Amendment 
executed by the Lessor and Lessee at the issuance of 2019A Bonds by the Lessor in connection 
with the 2019 Engineering, Technology and Innovation Building Project.” 

PART II 

RENTAL PAYMENTS 

Section 2 of the Original Lease, as previously supplemented and amended, is hereby 
further amended by adding at the end thereof the following paragraphs: 

“Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Lease (as defined in the Fourth 
Amendment), the Lessee agrees to pay additional rental for the Premises in an annual amount not 
to exceed One Million Two Hundred Fifty-One Thousand Dollars ($1,251,000).  Each semi-
annual installment of such rental payment, payable as hereinafter described, shall be based on an 
amount not greater than the insured value (i.e. full replacement cost) of the Premises, together 
with that portion of the improvements to the Premises which are complete and ready for use and 
occupancy by the Lessee, at the time such semi-annual installment is made.  Such additional 
rental shall be paid in semi-annual installments on June 30 and December 31 of each year 
commencing no earlier than June 30 in the year immediately following the year in which the 
Fourth Amendment is recorded by the Lessor and Lessee and ending no later twenty (20) 
calendar years thereafter.  All rentals payable under the terms of the Lease shall be paid by the 
Lessee to Trustee.  All payments so made by the Lessee shall be considered as payments to the 
Lessor of the rentals payable under the Lease.” 

“After the sale of the each series of the 2019A Bonds, the annual rental shall be reduced 
to an amount sufficient to pay principal and interest due on all Bonds issued and outstanding 
under the Indenture in each twelve (12) month period commencing on June 30 of each year, 
together with incidental costs in each year in an amount to be determined at the time each series 
of the 2019A Bonds are sold for the purpose of paying annual Trustee fees and related costs, 
payable in semi-annual installments.  In addition, each such reduced semi-annual installment 
shall be based on the value of the Premises, together with the improvements located on the real 
estate which is then subject to the Lease together with that portion of the constructed, renovated 
or remodeled improvements on such real estate as they currently exist and which are complete 
and ready for use and occupancy by the Lessee at the time such semi-annual installment is made.  
Such amount shall be endorsed on the Lease in the form of Exhibit A attached to the Fourth 



 

3 

Amendment and made a part hereof by the parties as soon as the same can be done after the sale 
of each series of the 2019A Bonds, and such endorsement shall be recorded as an addendum to 
the Lease.” 

PART III 

REAFFIRMATION OF LEASE 

Except as otherwise provided herein, all terms, conditions and provisions of the Lease, as 
previously supplemented and amended, are hereby ratified and affirmed. 



 

4 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Lessor and Lessee have executed this Fourth Amendment 
to Lease as of the date and year first above written. 

 
 ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOL 

BUILDING CORPORATION 
  
  
 By:   
  William G. Cork, President 
Attest:  
  
  
   
Dr. John Hutchings, Secretary/Treasurer  
 ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS, 

ELKHART COUNTY, INDIANA 
  
  
 By:   
  Douglas K. Weaver, President of the Board 

 of School Trustees 
 

  
Attest:  
  
  
   
Carolyn R. Morris, Secretary of the Board of 
School Trustees 

 

 



 

5 

 

STATE OF INDIANA  ) 
     )  SS: 
COUNTY OF ELKHART  ) 

Before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, personally 
appeared William G. Cork and Dr. John Hutchings, personally known to me to be the President 
and the Secretary, respectively, of the Elkhart Community School Building Corporation, and 
acknowledged the execution of the foregoing Fourth Amendment to Lease for and on behalf of 
said corporation. 

WITNESS my hand and notarial seal this _____ day of __________________, 2019.  

  
        

Written Signature 
 
       
Printed Signature 

  
 NOTARY PUBLIC 
  
My Commission Expires: 
 
       

My County of Residence is: 
 
       

  
 



 

6 

 

STATE OF INDIANA  ) 
     )  SS: 
COUNTY OF ELKHART  ) 

Before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, personally 
appeared Douglas K. Weaver and Carolyn R. Morris, personally known to me as the President 
and the Secretary, respectively, of the Board of School Trustees of the Elkhart Community 
Schools, Elkhart County, Indiana, and acknowledged the execution of the foregoing Fourth 
Amendment to Lease for and on behalf of said school corporation. 

WITNESS my hand and notarial seal this _____ day of __________, 2019.  

  
        

Written Signature 
 
       
Printed Signature 

  
 NOTARY PUBLIC 
  
My Commission Expires: 
 
       

My County of Residence is: 
 
       

  
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

This instrument prepared by Jeffery J. Qualkinbush, Esquire, Barnes & Thornburg LLP, 11 
South Meridian, Indianapolis, Indiana 46204 



 

A-1 

EXHIBIT A 

ADDENDUM TO FOURTH AMENDMENT TO LEASE BY AND BETWEEN ELKHART 
COMMUNITY SCHOOL BUILDING CORPORATION, LESSOR, AND ELKHART 

COMMUNITY SCHOOLS, ELKHART COUNTY, INDIANA, LESSEE 

 THIS ADDENDUM TO FOURTH AMENDMENT TO LEASE (this “Addendum”), 
entered into as of this _________ day of _____________, 20__, by and between Elkhart 
Community School Building Corporation, an Indiana nonprofit corporation (the “Lessor”), and 
Elkhart Community Schools, Elkhart County, Indiana, a public school corporation existing under 
by the laws of the State of Indiana (the “Lessee”); 
 
 WITNESSETH: 
 
 WHEREAS, the Lessor and the Lessee entered into a Fourth Amendment to Lease, dated 
as of April 9, 2019 (the “Fourth Amendment”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is provided in the Fourth Amendment that there shall be endorsed thereon 
the adjusted rental at the time each series of 2019A Bonds (as defined in the Fourth Amendment) 
are issued. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY AGREED, CERTIFIED AND STIPULATED by 
the undersigned that the adjusted rental is set forth on Appendix I attached hereto. 
 



 

A-2 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have caused this Addendum to be executed for 
and on their behalf as of the day and year first above written. 
 
 LESSOR 

 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOL 
BUILDING CORPORATION 

  
  
 By:   
  William G. Cork, President 
Attest:  
  
  
  
Dr. John Hutchings, Secretary/Treasurer  
 LESSEE 

 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS, 
ELKHART COUNTY, INDIANA 

  
  
 By:   
  Douglas K. Weaver, President of the Board of 

School Trustees 
  
Attest:  
  
  
  
Carolyn R. Morris, Secretary of the Board of 
School Trustees 

 

 



 

A-3 

STATE OF INDIANA ) 
    ) SS: 
COUNTY OF ELKHART ) 

Before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, this _____ 
day of ________________, 20__, personally appeared William G. Cork and Dr. John Hutchings, 
personally known to me to be President and Secretary, respectively, of Elkhart Community 
School Building Corporation and acknowledged the execution of the foregoing Addendum to 
Fourth Amendment to Lease for and on behalf of said Corporation. 

WITNESS my hand and notarial seal. 

 
   
 (Written Signature) 
  
  
   
 (Printed Signature) 
 Notary Public 
  
My Commission Expires:  
  
   
  
My County of Residence:  
  
   
 



 

A-4 

STATE OF INDIANA ) 
    ) SS: 
COUNTY OF ELKHART ) 

Before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, this 
______ day of __________, 20__, personally appeared Douglas K. Weaver and Carolyn R. 
Morris, personally known to me to be President and Secretary, respectively, of the Board of 
School Trustees of the Elkhart Community Schools, Elkhart County, Indiana, and acknowledged 
the execution of the foregoing Addendum to Fourth Amendment to Lease for and on behalf of 
said School Corporation. 

WITNESS my hand and notarial seal. 

 
   
 (Written Signature) 
  
  
   
 (Printed Signature) 
 Notary Public 
  
My Commission Expires:  
  
  
   
  
My County of Residence:  
  
  
   
 

 
   

 

 

This instrument prepared by Jeffery J. Qualkinbush, Esquire, Barnes & Thornburg LLP, 
11 South Meridian, Indianapolis, Indiana 46204. 



 

A-5 

 Appendix I to Addendum to Fourth Amendment to Lease  
 
 Rental Schedule 
 
 The lease rental payments for the 2019A Bonds are set forth on the immediately following 
page.  
 

DMS JJQ 13906784v2 



APPROPRIATION RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SCHOOL 

TRUSTEES OF THE ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOL 

CORPORATION, ELKHART COUNTY, INDIANA 

 
WHEREAS, the Elkhart Community School Corporation, Elkhart County, Indiana (the 

“School Corporation”), exists and operates under the provisions of Indiana Code 20-26-1, as 
amended from time to time (the “Act”); and 

WHEREAS, the School Corporation, as lessee, previously entered into a Lease, dated as 
of February 24, 1998 (the “Original Lease”), as amended and supplemented by an Addendum to 
Lease, dated as of May 5, 1998 (the “Addendum to Lease”), a First Amendment to Lease, dated 
as of October 1, 2003 (the “First Amendment to Lease”), a Second Amendment to Lease, dated 
as of April 23, 2013 (the “Second Amendment to Lease”), an Addendum to Second Amendment 
to Lease, dated as of May 1, 2013 (the “Addendum to Second Amendment to Lease”), a Third 
Amendment to Lease, dated as of April 10, 2018 (the “Third Amendment to Lease”), and an 
Addendum to Third Amendment to Lease, dated as of December 1, 2018 (the “Addendum to 
Third Amendment to Lease”)(the Original Lease, as amended by the Addendum to Lease, the 
First Amendment to Lease, the Second Amendment to Lease, the Addendum to Second 
Amendment to Lease, the Third Amendment to Lease and the Addendum to Third Amendment 
to Lease, collectively, the “Lease”), each with the Elkhart Community School Building 
Corporation, an Indiana nonprofit corporation existing pursuant to Indiana Code 23-17, as 
amended (the “Building Corporation”), as lessor, pursuant to Indiana Code 20-47-3, as amended, 
and Indiana Code 20-47-4, as amended; and 

WHEREAS, the School Corporation, as lessee, has been authorized to enter into a fourth 
amendment to the Lease (the “Fourth Amendment to Lease”), with the Building Corporation, in 
order to allow the Building Corporation to issue first mortgage bonds to fund all or any portion 
of (i) the interest due on such first mortgage bonds, (ii) the costs of issuing such bonds, and 
(iii)(a) the reimbursement to the School Corporation for costs of improvements to the premises 
subject to the Lease (the “Premises”) previously incurred by the School Corporation following 
the date the Premises were acquired by the Building Corporation and (b) the payment to the 
School Corporation for an extension of the ownership of the Premises by the Building 
Corporation through the term set forth in the Third Amendment to Lease (clauses (a) and (b), 
collectively, the “School Corporation Payments”), all of which School Corporation Payments 
will be used by the School Corporation to pay for the costs of the 2019 Engineering, Technology 
and Innovation Building Project (as defined in the resolution adopted by the Board of School 
Trustees of the School Corporation (the “Board”) on February 26, 2019), and the costs of issuing 
such first mortgage bonds not paid by the Building Corporation, in an original aggregate 
principal amount not to exceed Five Million One Hundred Seventy Thousand Dollars 
($5,170,000) (the “2019A Bonds”); and 

WHEREAS, the School Corporation intends to use the money it receives from the School 
Corporation Payments, if any, to pay for (a) 2019 Engineering, Technology and Innovation 
Building Project, and (b) costs of issuance of the 2019A Bonds not paid by the Building 
Corporation (clauses (a) and (b), collectively, the “School Corporation Project”); and 



2 

WHEREAS, the costs of the School Corporation Project include, without limitation, all 
expenses necessarily incurred in connection with the proceedings, together with a sum sufficient 
to pay the costs of supervision and inspection during the period of the School Corporation 
Project, all expenses of every kind actually incurred by the Building Corporation or the School 
Corporation preliminary to acquisition of certain property by the Building Corporation and the 
School Corporation Project, such as costs of necessary records, engineering expenses, 
publication of notices, salaries and other expenses and the costs of land, rights-of-way and other 
property to be acquired or retained for the School Corporation Project; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has found that there are not sufficient funds available or provided 
for in the existing budget and tax levy which may be applied to the costs of the portion of the 
School Corporation Project and has heretofore authorized the Building Corporation to issue its 
2019A Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, notice of a hearing on said appropriation has been duly given by publication 
and posting as required by law, and the hearing on said appropriation has been held, at which all 
taxpayers had an opportunity to appear and express their views as to such appropriation. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
OF THE ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOL CORPORATION, ELKHART COUNTY, 
INDIANA, AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. There is hereby appropriated a sum not to exceed Five Million One 
Hundred Seventy Thousand Dollars ($5,170,000) out of the proceeds of the 2019A Bonds 
received by the School Corporation from the Building Corporation as the School Corporation 
Payments, together with all investment earnings thereon.  The School Corporation shall use such 
funds for the purpose of paying for all or a portion of the costs of the School Corporation Project. 

SECTION 2. Each such appropriation shall be in addition to all appropriations provided 
for in the existing budget and levy, and shall continue in effect until the completion of the School 
Corporation Project.  Any surplus of such proceeds shall be credited to the proper fund as 
provided by law. 

SECTION 3. A certified copy of this resolution, together with such other proceedings 
and actions as may be necessary, shall be filed by the fiscal officer of the School Corporation, 
who shall report the appropriation to the State of Indiana Department of Local Government 
Finance. 

SECTION 4. The President, Vice President, any other officer or member of the Board, 
the Superintendent of the School Corporation or the Chief Financial Officer of the School 
Corporation are hereby authorized to take any and all such actions and to execute all such 
instruments as are desirable to carry out the transactions contemplated by this resolution, in such 
forms as such officer or member executing the same shall deem proper, to be conclusively 
evidenced by the execution thereof and any and all actions previously taken, or documents 
previously executed, in connection with the transactions contemplated by this resolution, 
including but not limited to, publication of the notice of the public hearing held in connection 
with this appropriation, be, and hereby are, ratified and approved. 



3 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 9th day of April, 2019. 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES OF THE ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOL 

CORPORATION, ELKHART COUNTY, INDIANA 

   
AYE  NAY 

   
     
   
     
   
     
   
     
   
     
   
     
   
     
 
ATTEST: 
 
  
Secretary of the Board of School Trustees  

  

 

 

 

 

DMS JJQ 14093737v1 











policy 

 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3120.07ACS/page 1 of 1 

(As presented during the 3/26/19 BST meeting) 

 
 
 

EMPLOYMENT OF CONSULTANTS 

 
 
It is the purpose of this policy to allow the casual employment of personnel in a 
consulting capacity for administration, in-service, or instruction. 
 
In the general operations and education funds of the Board, money is appropriated 
annually for special services.  This might include resource persons in fields of 
education who could offer consulting advice on the administration or instructional 
processes.  The Superintendent shall negotiate a reasonable payment with the 
resource person. 
 
Specialists from industry, business, agriculture, or health occupation fields may be 
employed in a consulting capacity to assist with program planning, in-services, or 
directly in the instructional program.  Certified staff members employed by the 
Corporation may be used as casual resource personnel, outside of their regular 
assignment, at the discretion of the Superintendent. 
 
The Superintendent shall prepare administrative guidelines to ensure proper 
implementation of this policy. 
 
 
January 1, 2017April 9, 2019 



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES OPERATIONS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 8340/page 1 of 2 
 
 
 
 
 

LETTERS OF REFERENCE OR EMPLOYMENT REFERENCE 

 

Letter of Reference: 
 
The Board recognizes that an employee’s request to an administrator for a letter of 
reference is an opportunity to share information about the staff member’s 
performance with prospective employers.  A current or former employee has no 
expectation that a letter of reference will be written upon request.  The decision to 
comply with such a request shall be solely at the discretion of the administrator. 
 
If an administrator opts to prepare such a letter, the Board expects that the 
administrator to provide specific and truthful comments concerning the employee’s 
actual performance that which can be substantiated by the individual’s personnel 
file.  All such letters shall be subject to review by the Executive Director of Personnel 
and Legal ServicesDirector of Human Resources prior to sending.  Administrators 
electing to incorporate comments excerpted from an employee’s evaluation shall 
obtain prior authorization from the employee requesting the letter of reference. 
 
Employment Reference: 
 
Notwithstanding the preceding provision giving an administrator’s discretion to 
provide a letter of reference to a current or former employee, if another school makes 
a request for an employment reference for a current or former employee, in 
compliance with I.C. 20-26-5-11.5, the administrator shall disclose to the requesting 
school any incident known by the School Corporation in which the employee 
committed an act resulting in a substantiated report of abuse or neglect under 
Indiana law. 
 

In accordance with State law, an administrator who, in the scope of his/her 
employment, provides a letter of reference is entitled to at least a qualified privilege 
for his/her statements provided such statements were made in good faith. 
 
All Corporation employees, including but not limited to an administrator who 
prepares a letter of reference or provides an employment reference pursuant to this 
policy, are prohibited from assisting a Corporation employee, contractor or agent in 
obtaining a new job if s/he knows or has probable cause to believe such Corporation 
employee, contractor or agent engaged in sexual misconduct regarding a minor or 
student in violation of State or Federal law.  “Assisting” does not include the routine 



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES OPERATIONS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 8340/page 2 of 2 
 
 
transmission of administrative and personnel files.  The only exceptions permitted 
are those authorized by the Every Student Succeeds Act, such as where the matter 
has been investigated by law enforcement and the matter was officially closed due to 
lack of probable cause or where the individual was acquitted or otherwise 
exonerated of the alleged misconduct.  No Corporation employee shall provide a 
letter of reference or an employment reference for any Corporation employee, former 
employee, contractor or agent if s/he knows or has probable cause to believe such 
individual engaged in sexual misconduct regarding a minor or student in violation of 
State or Federal law. 
 
The Superintendent shall develop the administrative guidelines necessary to 
implement this policy. 
 
 
 
I.C. 22-5-3-1 
I.C. 20-26-5-11.5 
I.C. 22-5-3-1 
20 U.S.C. 7926, Section 8546 of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act 
(ESEA) as amended by the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) 
 
 
© NEOLA 20062018 
 
January 1, 2017April 9, 2019 



GCR 
Proposed New Administrative Regulation  

 

PROVIDING A REFERENCE 

 
Administrators who choose to provide a letter of reference, when asked, for any 
Corporation employee shall adhere to the following when preparing such a letter: 
 
The letter of reference shall include only truthful and factual statements which are 
substantiated by the employee’s personnel file. 
 
The letter of reference shall not include any of the following: 

 
 A. any statements the administrator knows to be untrue; 
  
 B. any statements made in bad faith; 
  
 C. any statements motivated by anger, grudges, jealousy, resentment, 

or ill will toward the employee; 
  
 D. any statements including exaggerations; and 
  
 E. any statements based upon incomplete investigations involving the 

employee 
 
Administrator shall provide the Director of Human Resources a copy of the letter for 
review prior to sending. 
 
 
April 9, 2019 
 
 



















































































































 

Memo 

To: Dr. Steve Thalheimer and ECS Board of School Trustees 

From: Phil Lederach 

cc:  

Date: April 5, 2019 

Re: Middle School Mathematics Curricular Resource Adoption 

  

The Elkhart Community Schools Middle School Mathematics Resource Adoption Committee is 
making a recommendation to the school board for the adoption of Discovery Mathematics 
Techbook as the core curricular resource for middle school mathematics. 

This recommendation is the culmination of a process that began in the fall of 2018 and has 
involved many hours of work by committee members. 

We are excited by this resource and feel it will support best-practice instruction, facilitate 
deeper learning by ECS students, and help prepare students for the new high-stakes tests. 

I wish to thank the committee members for their hard work, thoughtful discussions, and 
informed decision-making.  Their dedication to ECS students was foremost in their minds and 
clearly evident throughout this process.  



What is the 

title of the 

grant?

What is the 

name of the 

granting 

agency/

entity?

Please list 

school/entity 

applying.

Individual/

contact applying 

for the grant?

What is the 

amount

applied for?

How will the grant funds be used 

and who will oversee the 

management of the grant?

Please explain how the grant funds will be 

used to support the district vision, focus, and 

goals. 

Please outline the grant budget for 

the funds requested.

What is the 

grant submission 

deadline?

SEL Innovation 

Award. 

Restorative 

Justice 

Education: 

Changing the 

Culture of Our 

Schools

NOVO 

Foundation: 

Education First

Student Services Todd Kelly $25,000 for year 

1, $25,000 for 

year 2

Todd Kelly will oversee the 

management of the grant. The 

funds will be used to train staff in 

Restorative Justice and provide 

stipends for 1 staff person in each 

school to be the Restorative 

Justice "Champion" for their 

school.

In his Healthy Schools, Healthy Elkhart: 

Priorities for ECS, Dr. Thalheimer lists the first 

priority as "Assess and implement practices to 

promote individual and institutional health 

(restorative justice, trauma-informed practices, 

mindfulness, social & emotional wellness) in 

order to nurture positive relationships and 

repair harm for any person." If this grant is 

awarded to ECS, we will be able to begin to lay 

the ground work for this priority to be achieved.

Year 1 (2019-20 school year), 20 stipends 

for RJ Champions @$800.... $16,000

Center for Community Justice (CCJ) 4 day 

training................................... $ 7,300

CCJ Ongoing Consultation (including 4 

quarterly 2 hour meetings)......... $ 1,700

Year 1 

TOTAL..........................................................

...................................... $25,000 

Year 2 (2020-21 school year)

CCJ: multiple 4 day trainings for school RJ 

teams (including subs)......... $25,000

3/22/2019

Bullying 

Prevention

Safe Fleet Student Services Todd Kelly $5,000 Todd Kelly will oversee the 

management of the grant. Funds 

will be used to support the 

Move2Stand Bullying Prevention 

programs in all of our secondary 

schools. Specifically, we would like 

to send 6 students to the 

International Bullying Prevention 

Association conference to attend 

along with their adult sponsors. 

Student leaders will present at the 

conference.

Our Superintendent, in the "Healthy Schools, 

Healthy Elkhart" list of priorities, listed the first 

priority as "Assess and implement practices to 

promote individual and institutional health 

(restorative justice, trauma-informed practices, 

mindfulness, social & emotional wellness) in 

order to nurture positive relationships and 

repair harm for any person."

Our bullying prevention clubs promote all of 

these practices by implementing student led 

initiatives through Move2Stand clubs that 

promote kindness in our schools.

If the trip to the International Bullying 

Prevention Association is approved, these 

funds will be used for transportation, food 

and housing for 6 student leaders who will 

present at the conference. (Expenses for 

adult leaders are covered through another 

grant.)

Airfare $410 per flight X 6 

students.................................$2460

Hotel (double occupancy) $200 X 3 nights X 

3 rooms....$1800

Food $40 per day for 3 days X 6 

students....................... $ 720 

TOTAL..........................................................

........................ $4980

If the trip is not approved next school year, 

funds will go into the bullying prevention 

fund to support our bullying prevention 

clubs in other ways.

3/31/2019

Page 1 of 1 4/9/19 Board Meeting










	Agenda - April 9, 2019 Revised
	Minutes - Public Work Session March 12 2019
	Minutes - Public Work Session March 26 2019
	Minutes - Regular Meeting March 26 2019
	Gift Acceptance - CHS Athletic
	Resolution Confirming Fourth Amendment to Lease etc
	Execution Copy of Fourth Amendment to Lease
	Resolution Approving Additional Appropriation
	Fundraiser Requests
	Authorization of Bus Purchase
	Board Policy 3120.07ACS
	Board Policy 8340
	Administrative Regulation GCR
	Elkhart Public Library Board Appointment
	ELA Adoption
	Middle School Math Adoption
	Grants
	Overnight Trip Requests
	Conference Leave Requests - Perkins
	Conference Leave Requests

